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I.  INTRODUCTION

1. In this Notice of Apparent Liability For Forfeiture (“NAL”), issued pursuant to Section 503(b) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended (the “Act”), and Section 1.80 of the Commission’s rules,
 we find that the captioned licensees, all of which are subsidiaries of Clear Channel Communications, Inc. (“Clear Channel”), apparently violated 18 U.S.C. § 1464 and 47 C.F.R. § 73.3999, by willfully and repeatedly airing indecent material over the captioned stations during the July 19, November 14, 19, 26 and 27 and December 27, 2001, broadcasts of the “Bubba the Love Sponge” program.  Furthermore, we find that they each appear to have failed to maintain copies of certain required documents in the public inspection files of each of their respective captioned stations, in apparent willful violation of Section 73.3526(e)(10) of the Commission’s rules.
  Based on the totality of the evidence before us and Clear Channel’s history of transgressions relating to the broadcast of indecent material over stations licensed to its subsidiaries, we conclude that Clear Channel is apparently liable for a monetary forfeiture in the amount of Seven Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand Dollars ($755,000), the statutory maximum of $27,500 each for 26 indecency violations ($715,000), and the base amount of $10,000 each for four public file violations ($40,000).
II.  BACKGROUND

2. 
This proceeding arises out of a series of formal complaints filed on behalf of Douglas Vanderlaan against Clear Channel alleging: (1) indecency violations; (2) public inspection file violations; (3) improper intimidation by Clear Channel against the complainant; and (4) the promotion and glorification of the use of illegal drugs in Clear Channel’s broadcasts and on its web site.
   The Enforcement Bureau (the “Bureau”) issued a series of letters of inquiry
 and the record includes responses by Clear Channel
 and by the complainant, to Clear Channel’s responses.
 
III.  DISCUSSION

A.  Indecency Analysis
3. The Federal Communications Commission is authorized to license radio and television broadcast stations and is responsible for enforcing the Commission’s rules and applicable statutory provisions concerning the operation of those stations.  The Commission’s role in overseeing program content is very limited.  The First Amendment to the United States Constitution and Section 326 of the Act prohibit the Commission from censoring program material and from interfering with broadcasters’ freedom of expression.
  The Commission does, however, have the authority to enforce statutory and regulatory provisions restricting indecency and obscenity.  Specifically, it is a violation of federal law to broadcast obscene or indecent programming.  Title 18 of the United States Code, Section 1464, prohibits the utterance of “any obscene, indecent or profane language by means of radio communication.”
  In addition, consistent with a subsequent statute and court case,
 Section 73.3999 of the Commission’s rules provides that radio and television stations shall not broadcast indecent material during the period 6 a.m. through 10 p.m.
4. As an initial matter, we find that all of the seven segments at issue in this NAL were broadcast during this prohibited time period, at the time of day and on the specific dates alleged by Mr. Vanderlaan in his First Complaint, 
 albeit not by all four of the captioned stations.  In this regard, Clear Channel has acknowledged that segments 1, 2 and 7 were indeed broadcast, and that the transcripts for these segments submitted by Mr. Vanderlaan are accurate. 
  Clear Channel states that it did not retain audio recordings or transcripts of its own for the broadcasts encompassed by the remaining three segments, segments 3, 4, 5 and 6.  Consequently, as to those segments, Clear Channel refuses to “admit or acknowledge that the material in the transcripts provided by Mr. Vanderlaan aired as he alleges.”
  However, based upon the evidence before us, including Clear Channel’s failure to refute adequately Mr. Vanderlaan’s allegations, we find that Segments 3, 4, 5 and 6 were also broadcast at the time and on the dates indicated in the First Complaint, and that the transcripts for those segments accurately depict those broadcasts.
  Clear Channel concedes that Stations WXTB(FM), WRLX(FM) and WPLA(FM) regularly aired the “Bubba the Love Sponge” program during the entire period of time encompassed by all seven segments and does not claim that any of the stations edited the show. Consequently, we find that Stations WXTB(FM), WRLX(FM) and WPLA(FM) broadcast all seven of the segments, as alleged.  Clear Channel, however, represents that Station WCKT(FM) did not begin carrying the “Bubba the Love Sponge” program until October 29, 2001.
  Because segments 1 and 2 were broadcast before WCKT(FM) commenced airing the program, we find that the station broadcast only segments 3 through 7.  

5. Any consideration of government action against allegedly indecent programming must take into account the fact that such speech is protected under the First Amendment.
  The federal courts consistently have upheld Congress’s authority to regulate the broadcast of indecent material, as well the Commission’s interpretation and implementation of the governing statute.
  Nevertheless, the First Amendment is a critical constitutional limitation that demands that, in indecency determinations, we proceed cautiously and with appropriate restraint.
  

6. The Commission defines indecent speech as language that, in context, depicts or describes sexual or excretory activities or organs in terms patently offensive as measured by contemporary community standards for the broadcast medium.
  

Indecency findings involve at least two fundamental determinations.  First, the material alleged to be indecent must fall within the subject matter scope of our indecency definition -- that is, the material must describe or depict sexual or excretory organs or activities. Second, the broadcast must be patently offensive as measured by contemporary community standards for the broadcast medium.

7. As an initial matter, all of the seven program segments, in one manner or another, unquestionably involved on-air discussions relating to descriptions or depictions of sexual organs, excretory organs and/or activities of a sexual nature. The broadcasts involved conversations about such things as oral sex, penises, testicles, masturbation, intercourse, orgasms and breasts.  Clear Channel does not dispute that the broadcasts involved such descriptions or depictions.
  Accordingly, we conclude that each of the segments that were broadcast satisfies the first prong of our indecency analysis.  

8. Having satisfied the first prong, we now turn to an analysis of whether the material in the seven segments subject to this NAL satisfies the second prong of the Commission’s two-part indecency analysis – that is, whether the broadcasts were patently offensive as measured by contemporary community standards for the broadcast medium.
  In our assessment of whether broadcast material is patently offensive, “the full context in which the material appeared is critically important.”
 Three principal factors are significant to this contextual analysis: (1) the explicitness or graphic nature of the description; (2) whether the material dwells on or repeats at length descriptions of sexual or excretory organs or activities; and (3) whether the material appears to pander or is used to titillate or shock.
  In examining these three factors, we must weigh and balance them to determine whether the broadcast material is patently offensive because “[e]ach indecency case presents its own particular mix of these, and possibly, other factors.”
  In particular cases, the weight of one or two of the factors may outweigh the others, either rendering the broadcast material patently offensive and consequently indecent,
 or, alternatively, removing the broadcast material from the realm of indecency.
  

9. We turn now to an analysis of these factors as they relate to each segment,
 to determine whether the material that was broadcast, taken in context, is patently offensive as measured by contemporary community standards for the broadcast medium. 

Segment 1 (aired July 19, 2001 between 6:30 and 8:30 a.m.):
  In this segment,
 skits in which the voices of purported cartoon characters talk about drugs and sex are inserted between advertisements for Cartoon Network’s Friday night cartoons that are identified as “provocative adult cartoons to help you get your freak on.”  The first skit begins when Shaggy tells Scooby Doo that he needs crack cocaine but has no money to buy it.  Scooby Doo responds that Shaggy could “su(bleep)ck d(bleep)ick” to pay for the drugs.  In the next skit, Fat Albert, a/k/a Phat Diddy Daddy, gets killed in a drive-by shooting after bragging that Jennifer Lopez had been “s(bleep)ing Diddy Daddy’s (bleep)ck the previous night.  The third skit begins with the theme music from “The Jetsons” cartoon show.  George Jetson then begins telling Jane that he no longer needs Viagra because he got a “Spacely Sprocket (bleep)ck ring.”  After George flips a switch to activate the device, sound effects indicate that the device malfunctions, and the skit ends with George calling for Jane to turn off the device.  Next, Alvin the Chipmunk complains that he hasn’t “been laid in almost six weeks.”  Another chipmunk responds that his problem is due to the “f(bleep)cking pussy music we play” and begins to sing a more “kick ass” song directing a “filthy chipmunk-whore” to “[s]uck on my (inaudible) Chipmunk (bleep)s,” “[p]ut ‘em in your mouth and (bleep)uck ‘em.”  He continues by singing “They taste like pistachios.  They’re warm and fuzzy. Suck my (bleep).”  The song is interrupted by a final advertisement for “Cartoons with Balls.”
This segment contains sufficiently graphic and explicit references to sexual and excretory organs and activities to satisfy the first criterion of our contextual analysis.  Such sexual references are found in each of the skits and are repeated throughout the segment, satisfying the second factor of our contextual analysis.  Finally, the use of cartoon characters in such a sexually explicit manner during hours of the day when children are likely to be listening is shocking and makes this segment patently offensive.  It is foreseeable that young children would be particularly attentive listeners to this segment because of the character voices and the cartoon theme music used in the segment.   The calculated and callous nature of the stations’ decision to impose this predictably offensive material upon young, vulnerable listeners is particularly compelling and weighs heavily in our analysis.  Thus, the segment also satisfies the third factor of our contextual analysis.  Consequently, this segment is apparently indecent.      

Segment 2 (July 19, 2001, between 6:30 and 8:14 a.m.):  In this segment,
 a male applicant for a job as an underwear model calls the model search hotline and describes his as the “perfect penis,” so gorgeous that “[e]very f(bleep)ing, every -- every ounce of f(bleep)cking co(bleep) purple (inaudible) of it” “should be hanging in the f(bleep)cking Louvre,” and so strong that it can lift a 25-pound weight and can split his pants like the Incredible Hulk.  Such vivid descriptions of the caller’s penis satisfy the first criterion of our contextual analysis.  The entire segment discusses the man’s penis, and graphic descriptions of it are referenced throughout the segment.  Thus, the second criterion of the contextual analysis is also satisfied.  The sole purpose of these vivid descriptions apparently is to shock and titillate listeners.  Thus, the third criterion of our contextual analysis is satisfied.  Because this segment repeats graphic and explicit descriptions of a sexual organ in an effort to titillate listeners, it appears to be patently offensive and indecent.

Segment 3 (November 14, 2001, between 7:00 and 8:55 a.m.):  In this segment,
 one of the men participating in the on-air discussion is Ned, a self-described “loud masturbator.”  He views the act of masturbating in public as a performance and states that he looks as though he’s having a “grand mal seizure” when he does it.  When asked to do so by the host, Ned, with increasing drum beat rhythms as an accompaniment, reenacts masturbating and reaching orgasm.  Despite the use of euphemisms such as “wax[ing] your carrot” when referring to masturbation, and “sparky” when referring to a penis, the sexual references in the segment are unmistakable and sufficiently explicit to satisfy the first criteria of our contextual analysis.  The entire segment dwells at length on masturbation.  Thus, the second criterion of our contextual analysis is also satisfied.  Finally, the participants’ discussions of masturbating styles and techniques, and Ned’s simulation of such a sex act, make it apparent that the segment was used to titillate and shock the program’s listeners.  In doing so, this segment satisfies the third criterion of our contextual analysis.  Accordingly, we find that this segment appears to be patently offensive and indecent. 
Segment 4 (November 19, 2001, between 8:00 and 9:00 a.m.):  In this segment,
 three males interview a female caller about her sexual exploits with “Spider,” another man.  They discuss the length of Spider’s penis, the length of time their sexual encounter lasted, and the sexual techniques they used.  After the caller indicated that she had given Spider oral sex, one host responded that he hoped Spider had not given her oral sex because heavier women, like her, have “some cheese down there.”  The hosts then began ridiculing the caller about her size and asked “Are you like a Ball Park Plank -- Frank, you p[l]ump when we bang ya?”  The conversation between the hosts and the caller was sufficiently explicit and graphic to convey unmistakably the sexual meaning of the euphemisms they used and to satisfy the first criterion of our contextual analysis.  The participants talked at length about sexual and excretory activities and organs.   It was apparent that the purpose of the call was to discuss the sexual organs and activities of the caller and Spider.  As a consequence, the discussion dwelled upon the subjects of sexual organs and activities, and, thus, satisfies the second criterion of our contextual analysis.  Finally, it is apparent that the discussion was titillating and shocking with respect to the audience.  Thus, this segment meets the third and final criterion of our contextual analysis.  As a consequence, we find that the segment appears to be patently offensive and indecent.
Segment 5 (November 26, 2001, between 7:00 and 9:00 a.m.):  In this segment,
 a male host and two male cohorts interview or talk with two female studio guests who are participants in a contest to win breast implant surgery.  The host takes pictures of the women and directs and describes their poses, e.g., directing one to let him “get a little more ass,” in the picture and, later, to pose so that he can take a “front panty shot.”  A discussion of oral sex begins when the host tells Hillary, one of the women, that long fingernails like hers “feel so good on my boys,” and that his genital area is shaved.  In response, Hillary states, “That’s good.  No -- no hairs in the teeth and stuff.”  She then discusses her preference for giving, rather than getting, oral sex and declares herself to be a “big oral queen” who could “go a half-hour solid,” before her “cheeks would hurt.”  She discusses her sexual escapades with two men, her inability to reach orgasm and her frequent masturbation.  During the ensuing discussion the host encourages Hillary to masturbate on air while he watches and gives a “play by play.”  To encourage her to cooperate, he tells her that masturbating on air would increase her chances of winning breast implants and, when she continues to refuse, he proposes that he or the other female guest give her manual sex during the broadcast.
The graphic and explicit descriptions of sexual or excretory organs and activities contained in this segment satisfy the first criterion of our contextual analysis.  The repetition of these descriptions and other sexual references throughout the segment satisfy the second criterion of our contextual analysis.  The continued and repeated explicit and graphic sexual references clearly demonstrate the shocking and titillating nature of the material, thus satisfying the third criterion of our contextual analysis.  Consequently, we find that this segment appears to be patently offensive and indecent. 

Segment 6 (November 27, 2001, between 7:30 and 9:00 a.m.):  In this segment,
 a male host and a co-host interview two female studio guests who are participants in the “Twelve Boobs of Christmas” contest to win breast implant surgery.  The segment begins with the host taking pictures of the contestants’ “boobs” in order to “facilitate you on some new boobies, baby.”  He then begins asking about their sexual activities and is impressed that one of the women, when giving “oral sex,” does not “recycle,” or “waste a drop.”  This segment is sufficiently explicit and graphic to meet criteria one of our contextual analysis.  Because the sexual descriptions and references are repeated throughout the segment, criterion two of our contextual analysis is also satisfied.  Finally, these sexual references and discussions appear to be inserted only to titillate the audience.  Thus, criterion three of our contextual analysis is also met.  Consequently, we find that this segment appears to be patently offensive and indecent.
Segment 7 (December 27, 2001, between 8:00 and 9:00 a.m.):    In this segment,
 Bubba and two male co-hosts discuss the abnormally large size of his “balls,” while a singer and chorus sing about his testicles in explicit and graphic detail.  The euphemism, “balls,” is a common one, generally known to mean testicles, a sexual organ.  Descriptions, such as those stating that Bubba’s “balls,” which are the size of “cantaloupes” or “coconuts,” are “firm and meaty” with “ingrown hairs,” are sufficiently graphic to meet the first contextual criteria.  Such descriptions are repeated at length during the entire segment, satisfying the second contextual criterion.  Finally, the material satisfies the third criterion of our contextual analysis because it is pandering, titillating and shocking to the program’s listeners.  Thus, we find that this segment appears to be patently offensive and indecent.

10. Based on the foregoing, we find that the material that was broadcast in these seven segments satisfies the second prong of our two-part test and, thus, appear patently offensive, as measured by contemporary community standards for the broadcast medium.  Because we have found these seven segments to have apparently satisfied both prongs of our two part test, we conclude that the material  contained apparently indecent speech.  

11. Each of the segments was broadcast between 6 a.m. to 10 p.m., at a time of day when the broadcast of indecent material is explicitly prohibited by Section 73.3999 of the Commission’s rules.  Because these segments appear to have contained indecent speech and were broadcast at times of the day when indecent speech is proscribed, each of the broadcasts appears to be legally actionable.
  We find, therefore, that three of the captioned stations (Stations WXTB(FM), WRLX(FM) and WPLA(FM)) each broadcast seven apparently indecent segments,
 in apparent willful and repeated violation of Title 18 U.S.C. § 1464 and Section 73.3999 of the Commission’s rules.  In addition, the fourth captioned station (Station WCKT(FM)), which began carrying the “Bubba the Love Sponge” program subsequent to the other stations, broadcast five of the apparently indecent segments (Segments 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7),
 also in apparent willful and repeated violation of Title 18 U.S.C. § 1464 and Section 73.3999 of the Commission’s rules.
  

B.  Public Inspection File

12. Section 73.3526(e)(10) of the Commission’s rules requires broadcast licensees to maintain a public inspection file containing specific types of information.  Section 73.3526(e)(10) specifies that, among the documents that must be included in the file, is “material having a substantial bearing on a matter which is the subject of an FCC investigation or complaint to the FCC . . .”
  Such material must be retained in a station’s public inspection file pending written notification that it may be discarded.
  Where lapses occur in maintaining the public inspection file, neither the negligent acts nor omissions of station employees or agents, nor the subsequent remedial actions undertaken by the licensee, excuse or nullify a licensee's rule violation.
 

13. It is beyond dispute that, on August 22, 2001, each of the four captioned stations failed to include copies of documents relating to Mr. Vanderlaan’s First Complaint in its public inspection file.  In declarations accompanying the Second Complaint, Mr. Vanderlaan, Dr. David D. Swanson, Kathy Taunton and Sally Oesch each states that, on that date, he or she visited one of the captioned stations during normal business hours, reviewed its public inspection file, and determined that the file did not contain a copy of the First Complaint or any documents related to it.
  Although Clear Channel does not dispute these allegations, it argues that Station WXTB(FM) should be relieved of liability for its failure to have maintained the First Complaint in its public inspection file because a copy of the document was located elsewhere in the station after the requester had specifically identified and requested it.
  This argument lacks merit.  The Commission requires that such documents be maintained in the public inspection file. 
  The obvious intent of the rule is to facilitate public access to such documents.  To require an individual member of the public to examine a station’s public inspection file and then identify for station personnel what is missing from it clearly is inconsistent with the intent of the rule section.  
14. Based on the information before us, we find that the captioned licensees at each of their respective captioned stations failed to maintain certain required documents in their respective public inspection files, in apparent willful violation of Section 73.3526(e)(10) of the Commission’s rules.

C.  Other Allegations

15. In his First Complaint, Mr. Vanderlaan alleges that Clear Channel engaged in intimidating and abusive conduct after he had filed his First Complaint with the Commission, by threatening him with legal action and complaining to his employer.
  A finding of “[i]ntimidation or harassment of witnesses requires threats of reprisals or some other unnecessary and abusive conduct reasonably calculated to dissuade a witness from continuing his or her involvement in a proceeding.”
  In this case, Mr. Vanderlaan presents no evidence to corroborate his claim that Clear Channel contacted his employer and provides only a copy of his attorney’s response to a letter purportedly from the attorney for Todd “Bubba” Clem (the host of the program) to corroborate his allegation that he was threatened with legal action by Clear Channel.  In fact, Mr. Vanderlaan presents no evidence that the captioned licensees or Clear Channel made, or were even aware of, the contacts about which he complains.  Consequently, there is insufficient evidence to support a finding that Clear Channel or the captioned licensees engaged in intimidation or abuse.  Accordingly, we find no merit to this allegation.
16. In both his First Complaint and Third Complaint and Supplement, Mr. Vanderlaan alleges that Clear Channel promotes the use of illegal drugs.
  Consistent with the Commission’s limited role overseeing programming content mandated by the First Amendment and Section 326 of the Act,
 there is no rule or statutory provision barring a licensee from airing material referencing drug use.
  Thus, the allegations concerning this material do not warrant  enforcement action.
IV.  PROPOSED FORFEITURE
17. Having determined that the captioned licensees apparently willfully and/or repeatedly violated 18 U.S.C. § 1464 and Sections 73.3999 and 73.3526(e)(10) of the Commission’s rules, we turn to an analysis of whether, and to what extent, we should propose sanctions in this instance.  Under Section 503(b)(1) of the Act,
 any person who is determined by the Commission to have willfully or repeatedly failed to comply with any provision of the Act or any rule, regulation, or order issued by the Commission shall be liable to the United States for a forfeiture penalty.
  In order to impose such a  penalty, the Commission must issue a notice of apparent liability, the notice must be received, and the person against whom the notice has been issued must have an opportunity to show, in writing, why no such penalty should be imposed.
  The Commission will then issue a forfeiture if it finds by a preponderance of the evidence that the person has violated the Act or a Commission rule, regulation or order.
 
18. In the instant case, we have determined that three of the captioned stations (Stations WXTB(FM), WRLX(FM) and WPLA(FM)) each broadcast seven apparently indecent segments of the “Bubba the Love Sponge” program, in apparent willful and repeated violation of Title 18 U.S.C. § 1464 and Section 73.3999 of the Commission’s rules, and that the remaining captioned station (Station WCKT(FM)), which began carrying the “Bubba the Love Sponge” program after the other stations, broadcast five apparently indecent segments, in apparent willful and repeated violation of Title 18 U.S.C. § 1464 and Section 73.3999 of the Commission’s rules.  Stated otherwise, we conclude that the captioned licensees apparently violated 18 U.S.C. § 1464 and Section 73.3999 of the Commission’s rules on a total of 26 separate occasions.    Consequently, based upon our review of the record in this case, we conclude that Clear Channel, as the parent of each licensee, is apparently liable for forfeitures based upon 26 willful and repeated violations of our indecency rules.

19. The Commission’s Forfeiture Policy Statement sets a base forfeiture amount of $7,000 for the transmission of indecent material.
  The Forfeiture Policy Statement also specifies that the Commission shall adjust a forfeiture based upon consideration of the factors enumerated in Section 503(b)(2)(D) of the Act, 47 U.S.C. § 503(b)(2)(D), such as “the nature, circumstances, extent and gravity of the violation, and, with respect to the violator, the degree of culpability, any history of prior offenses, ability to pay, and such other matters as justice may require.”

20. Based upon our review of the record before us, we believe that an upward adjustment to the statutory maximum of $27,500 for each of the 26 apparent indecency violations is warranted.  The large number of apparent violations here, combined with Clear Channel’s repeated broadcasts in the past of apparently indecent material over multiple stations licensed to its subsidiaries, evidences a pattern of violations that justifies a proposed forfeiture of the statutory maximum.
    
21. Because we find that Clear Channel, through its subsidiary captioned licensee companies, apparently violated 18 U.S.C. § 1464 and Section 73.3999 of the Commission’s rules on 26 separate occasions, and that each such violation is subject to an apparent forfeiture in the amount of $27,500, we conclude that Clear Channel is apparently liable for a forfeiture in the amount of $715,000 for willfully and repeatedly broadcasting indecent material during various segments of the “Bubba the Love Sponge” program over the captioned stations.  Particularly in light of Clear Channel’s history of violations of the indecency rules, we also take this opportunity to reiterate our recent admonition (which took place after the behavior at issue here) that serious multiple violations of our indecency rule by broadcasters may well lead to the commencement of license revocation proceedings.
  We expect Clear Channel in particular to take this admonition seriously. 

22. We also have previously determined that the four captioned stations failed to maintain certain required documents in their respective public inspection files, in apparent willful violation of Section 73.3526(e)(10) of the Commission’s rules.  Based upon the factors articulated in Section 503(b)(2)(D) of the Act and the base forfeiture amount specified in the Forfeiture Policy Statement for violations of the our public inspection file rules, we conclude that a proposed forfeiture is warranted in the base forfeiture amount of $10,000 for each of the four apparent willful violations of Section 73.3526(e)(10) of the Commission’s rules, for a total of $40,000.

V.  ORDERING CLAUSES

23. ACCORDINGLY, IT IS ORDERED, pursuant to Section 503(b) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, and Section 1.80 of the Commission’s rules,
 that Clear Channel Communications, Inc., the parent company of each of the above-captioned licensees, is hereby NOTIFIED of its APPARENT LIABILITY FOR FORFEITURE in the total amount of Seven Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand Dollars ($755,000), for willfully violating 18 U.S.C. § 1464 and Sections 73.3999 and 73.3526(e)(10) of the Commission’s rules.

24.  IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, pursuant to Section 1.80 of the Commission’s rules, that within thirty (30) days of the release of this Notice, Clear Channel Communications, Inc. SHALL PAY the full amount of the proposed forfeiture against it or SHALL FILE a written statement seeking reduction or cancellation of the proposed forfeiture.

25. Payment of the forfeiture may be made by mailing a check or similar instrument, payable to the order of the Federal Communications Commission, to the Forfeiture Collection Section, Finance Branch, Federal Communications Commission, P.O. Box 73482, Chicago, Illinois 60673-7482.  The payment MUST INCLUDE the FCC Registration Numbers (“FRN”) referenced above and also should note the NAL/Account Number referenced above.

26. The response, if any, must be mailed to William H. Davenport, Chief, Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureau, Federal Communications Commission, 445 12th Street, S.W, Room 3-B443, Washington D.C. 20554 and MUST INCLUDE the NAL/Acct. No. referenced above.

27. The Commission will not consider reducing or canceling a forfeiture in response to a claim of inability to pay unless the respondent submits: (1) federal tax returns for the most recent three-year period; (2) financial statements prepared according to generally accepted accounting practices (“GAAP”); or (3) some other reliable and objective documentation that accurately reflects the respondent’s current financial status.  Any claim of inability to pay must specifically identify the basis for the claim by reference to the financial documentation submitted.

28. Requests for payment of the full amount of this Notice of Apparent Liability under an installment plan should be sent to: Chief, Revenue and Receivables Operations Group, 445 12th Street, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20554.
 
29. Under the Small Business Paperwork Relief Act of 2002, Pub L. No. 107-198, 116 Stat. 729 (June 28, 2002), the FCC is engaged in a two-year tracking process regarding the size of entities involved in forfeitures.  If Clear Channel qualifies as a small entity and if it wishes to be treated as a small entity for tracking purposes, it should so certify to us within thirty (30) days of this NAL, either in its response to the NAL or in a separate filing to be sent to the Investigations and Hearings Division.  The certification should indicate whether Clear Channel, including its parent entity and its subsidiaries, meet one of the definitions set forth in the list provided by the FCC’s Office of Communications Business Opportunities (“OCBO”) set forth in Attachment B of this Notice of Apparent Liability.  This information will be used for tracking purposes only.  Clear Channel’s response or failure to respond to this question will have no effect on its rights and responsibilities pursuant to Section 503(b) of the Communications Act.  If Clear Channel has questions regarding any of the information contained in Attachment B, it should contact OCBO at (202) 418-0990.

30. Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED, that the First Complaint, Second Complaint and Third Complaint and Supplement filed by Douglas Vanderlaan ARE GRANTED to the extent indicated herein, AND ARE OTHERWISE DENIED, and the complaint proceeding IS HEREBY TERMINATED.

31. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that copies of this Notice of Apparent Liability For Forfeiture shall be sent, by Certified Mail Return Receipt Requested, to Mr. Kenneth E. Wyker, Senior Vice President & General Counsel, Clear Channel Communications, Inc., c/o Clear Channel Worldwide, 200 East Basse Road, San Antonio, Texas 78209-8328, with a copy to Clear Channel’s counsel, John M. Burgett, Esq., at Wiley, Rein & Fielding, LLP, 1776 K Street, N.W., Washington, D.C., 20006, and to Mr. Douglas Vanderlaan, 8114 Parkridge Circle South, Jacksonville, Florida 32211, with a copy to his counsel, Arthur V. Belendiuk, Esq., at Smithwick & Belendiuk P.C., 5028 Wisconsin Avenue, N.W., #301, Washington, D.C. 20016. 







FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION
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Attachment A

Excerpts From WPLA(FM) Program Transcript
Provided As Exhibit 2 to April 3, 2002, 

Complaint of Douglas Vanderlaan
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BUBBA THE LOVE SPONGE
TRANSCRIPT

Radio Station: WPLA-EM, Callahaa, Florida

Material Broadeast: ‘The Bubba The Love Spange Moming Show

SEGMENTI:  July 19,2001 630-4:30 AM

bale Announcer:  MA
Shaggy Voiee. SV
Scooby Doa Voice: SD
Fat Alber Voioe:  FA
Male Friend Voice:  MF
George Jetson Voice: G
Chipmunk Voices:  CV
AlvinChipmunk:  AC

Inavdible. Music begins playing. Spoof commercial weaves in

Ma thought cartoons e st for kids. Well you need o check o Caoon
Toetwor on Fridey nights. Provocaive adult canoons 1o flp you ge your
freak on.

Masic - Theme from ‘Scooby Doo' carioon. “Seoobedy Doo, Hey Scooby,
Waere are you?"
sv

Fey Scoob, 1 don't know about you, but I'm jonesin’ for something real bad
D A Seooby Snack?

sv No Scoob, 1 was thinking someihin a e betier than & Scooby Snack,
s A crack rock?

sv O yeh Scoob, a crack rock sounds ike, ttally awesome right now. But
like, 1 don't have &my dough for the dop.

o You could eineodbIE) Greudibledek

sv Wihattre you saying Ssoab?

so audlible) (naudible)ick.

sv ‘We could subleep)ck dbleep)ick for crack rock. Scooby, you're a genius!

o Wboo hoo e

Ma (7o music) That's ight, put the kids 1o bed. These carioons e for growm-
ups. Tsm' that gkt Fat Alogrt?

ME What's up Fat Alber?
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Don'tcall me Pat Albert anymore. From now on, ' Phat-(shocp sound)
Diddy-Daddy.

What makes you 50 bad, Phat Diddy-Daddy?

Well, fof yourinformsation (whoop sound), st might, Jeanifer Lopez was.
s(vlecp)ing Diddy-Daddy's (blecpick.

Lookba-ou Fat Ba- Albert?
14610 you, that's Phat Diddy-Deddy.

Lockbs-o Phal Ba-Diddy Ba-Daddy. Puff Bs-Deddy's dubing o-ba drives-
by.

Sounds of shots firing and oars in background.

Obbe no-bat P-Ba-Diddy killed Phat-Ba-Diddy Ba-Dadey.
Unclear jngle.

Cartoon nevwork's Fridey ights. Adul caroons wilh adult desizes.
Music - Theme from “The Jetsons" cartaon. “Meet Gaorge Jetson ™
Great bews Jane. 1 40wt nced Viegss anymore. | gota Spacely Sprocket

(bleepdek ring. 05 one 0ip of 8 switch fraink sownd effecy... (inmudible
sound ffecrs).. Help, Jene| Cut this crazy thiog!

Mssic returns) Canoons ater-houss on Fridey pights.
Alvin, why do you look so frustrated?

Iheven't been laid in slmost six weeks.

Well yom know what ihe problem is?

What?

10 thar Aesp)cking pussy music we play.

Wit do you meant

1 e wanta get the bitches, we have to play more ¥ick 355 music.

Like watt

Cheek i shblesp) ow, Advn.

(To musi) Suck on my Ginsusible) Chipmunk (bleepls. Puvem i your mout

and (Uleeppock’em, fithy chipmunk.shore, Suck on my (insudible)

Chipmunk (bleep)s. They: este B pistachios. They'ze warm and fuzzy.
Suck ey (oee),

(Music retarns) Cartoons vith balls. Every Fridsy night at 10 0'clock on
Cartoon Nerwork

Cut 1o lis jockey. in background.

(Inoudible} s told me shere’s some asshole o line... (breaks to music)
Recording junps.



[image: image3.png]Anachment A

SEGMENT 20
Amouncer: A~
Answering Machine: FM (female)
Mok Caller. MC (male]
Recepticnist R (female)

AN (70 music) (nwudible) get your cry-baby whiny ass (ineudible) this is the
Tubba Radio Network.

Phone ringing.

™ (O machine). Hi you have ceached Kate with Strucsure underwear models
search hodine. 1°cn sorry  con' ake your call g o, bt i you leave
‘your tam, mumber and  brief message, Il get back 10 you 25 soon s 1 can.
Thank you fnachine besg).

M Helic? Eh.pick up. Somebody pick vp. Helo. Hello, Kate. Can | epeskto
Kate, plesse, thisis urgea.

23 Struckure Model Seazch, Jeanifes speaking, can  help you?

Me Yes, I was uh, trying 10 get s-bold of Kate. 1 saw this (hing in(he paper that
you're conducting an underwear model search end, and 1 would—I nesd 1o
i out havr (o eater, ‘cause 1 am defptely your man.

" Wl I an help you, sir. Wt informetion do you nesd - just how to emter?

Me Well yes,cause, 1 mean, e done aJot of mude modeling and underwear
modeling, nd F've g0rt el vou, the response 1 ge1 — s just phenamenal,

R’ S0, ub, i, give me some detolls 3bot yourscl.

MC Welloh, 1 hove & preny good bods, you know, I'm toned, slightly muscolar,
von, wash-bocrd siomach, el hat. Bt frankly, my best sribute is—is my
senis,

m Mm b,

Me mean, 1 don't wanna sound ke an ego-maniac, but my G(vleep)ck is a work
ofan.

™ Un.

Me 3 mean, it ke the hand of God came down ande-

EY Mm b

MC nd molded the perfect d(bleep)ek outs slay and stuck it on my body. You
catch my dif here?

R Un1 do. ER, however,it's not nude modeling. Jts an underwess, uh, it an
underweatnah, modeling show,

MC ¥ mean my d(blecp)ck should be hanging i the Moloep)cking Louwre

® Ohheh

MC sight mext 1o the Mona Lise

®

Well
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i my firm belicE hat every person in the warld showld be able (o ses my
delecpier.

Sir, T don't sally need (o hear tha.

A% marierof fac, | have an B by 10 glossy of my penis

Uk

3 could fax it o you

No. No. You don't need 10 do thetsir. You can just send us, o f you have
‘o oh ancthe, uh, Just @ $hot of, i, just your body cloibed, that® do.

Well you don't seem to gresp the megritude of—

Mt

of ty peris's gorgeousness.

Well—

T misn, bub,
i o,

s the perfert penis,

Every inch, every, every Wbleepling, cvery ~ every oonce of (blesplcking
cofbless) pirple Gnsudible) of it

Um, yesh. Sir, thr's way 00 much information, and thal’s not epproprite
Ttslike a Van Gogh or & Picasso, L mean—

it Vmareits. -

Imagine whet it would losk lie in 2 par of Structore underweat

M b, Glorious, T'm sure, but

¥ mean, 1 could sar 4 @becp)cking cull with 1is Cvlecp). Billions of posple

wotshipping my penis. The Reverend Sung Yong Moon Gids' heve &
becp)ek ke fhis, 1 el you tht righ now.

Youluow what s,  (raudibie) thes moch informaion. 1 think sha, you
P

You know, we could probebly just wrep this hing up right now, Just give me.
thejob. ) mean, T Yous ma.

M bram. Wel. you just need 10 send in th proper nformion, ot the.
nformation that you'se1¢lling me.

‘Wel, ow look swreetie pie. Did you thik there’s another man in Americs
weho can lf  25-pound weight with ks penis.

aughing)

1 can tie a25-pound Gnaudible) plte to my (sleep) end do 13 seps
Mm b,

Do you yndersiand, ub = do you understand what I'm saying? | got—] got
Fufblesplekiog musclzs in my clblecp)ek
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®

On my Gos.

M Do you know anybody else who's got mucles down therel

" No, mol don't, And —

Me meanif1flex my pends I can spli 1y fubleep)cking pens like the
Incredivle Hulk,

R (Lawgh) Youknow what, 1—] think thar's realy great information. But
agein, we're ot gonns noed thal.

Me Well, £l do i ight novw. 1) put the phone berween my jeans. I'm o
flex i dtleep)ck fike Armold Schwarzeneager, okay, then you — helio?
el

M {Lovgh) 8114 1 the Bubba Radio Nework.

Break in ecording.
SEGMENT 3: ember 14,2001, 700-9:00 A
Male Hos s
Secand Make: M
Toird Male: ™
Feawle Caller:  TC
“NED: o
Tape cuts inon iking.
MH (Graudibie) oo the jizzack stizzack of the plinsudible) or the pa(insudiblelo
pisificat
M (Loughing) ' ke 0 see how hat’s wrinen in iw. OF uh, in the books:
™ veab
Ma 1 oot wanns ge1 elbowed. T mesnn-you know, the gay's g0t s0me.
RPN going and a1l of s suddes - WACK!
™ (QLsvghing)
M Again, 179 dollars—ger & fve disc Gnsudible) Toshibs DV playes-
) Rigie,
™ You can it ¢ home, and ub (msudible) o your heart’s comen.
MH Yeah, wex that carot all day o
™ Wovgting)
MH

Let me ssk you s question. Now, when you're i the gensral popalation,
You're a6i—you're no in a privete booth, bu instead you're in one of those—
U, y0u know—you're in the theatre portion, with of course, uh—the.

complimentary eat betseen you. 1mean u, do people-u, suar doi
there 1007




[image: image6.png]Atachen A

a

5555 552 55YELBLEERER 5885¢EEER8

&%

Oh well uh—yesh, Yieah.

Yer,

Oh yeah

O well bold o now.

(Lavghing) Ohho... o,

What's going on hese?

Sey it a0

‘Ned, el me you don't go 1o the Grmudible).

e been here on occasian. 1 prefer the theare 0 the booth
Why? Fos the voyewism aspect?

Telyes. Yeah, sometimes | can get s-round of spplause fom snother patrs,
30— you know, is-ah—4nd of  show off hing

You mean a guy—like anoihes auy will put you over?

O yesh. The Gavdiblc) have to stop wh their doing snd just gt~
Whoe

Well—based cn volome o besed on disiance?

Just om—vb—style

Performance?

Performance

Presenmion?

Facial expressions.

Syie?

O, you kaaw, is—-yow know, everyone's gottheix awa siyle.

Well-—holg on acv. Phas Ned puts himself o, when Ned's doing it, Ned
does (mauciblc), you know, ot people... Ned, Ned - oooh oooh,
Ooch.

Comvulsion.(

udisle)

Mumim . There's—there's quiet mab—you know, mesturbators, and then
heze's—you know, boud masturbators—

Ve
And Ned hagpened 10 be the laner,
Lok ke I'm having  grand maj seizure

Give us en cxample, Fke—you know, maybe ust the words you use—
meybe—ga lie "oh god.*

aughing)
Wellits tb—you jusi——you always stan off slowly--
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SEGMENT 4;

Male Hos:

Well— 11 give you he—siorts a draming rigtin)
(hcing ot} Ohyeah... shwaa.
St drming) Now you' bt~y ll say tat?

Oh God... Yeah. People—you knaw, thats i those By ar ther or
smupay. They waans see & show.

(Drumming gets faster)

Ob—i*s coming_Oh maz. O yesh. O~—come on, RPM's going—Ch

Gd. Oouch... neudible)... Gooooh. Ooooh—is coming. Qoooh—man,
Oooh—inaudible)... concentration...

Sween Jesi,

Obr—yop know, gots Gnaveible). Hmmmm. (inaudible) Yecath. What &

Vo suy et spaky,-what's up? Assh, ooh ycah, ob God, Here] g0 sgaial
Docooh yesh 1t wonea g—ah o8 oh-oh ncreasing volure a1 drumming
Fhytan) szah (screaming)—ooo0h Whew, Aalyooco.

Crazy ass Ned
God,

Five in from of the 10 of the howr.

‘MNovember 10, 2001, £00-9:00
MH

Secot Maje Veice: SM (sometimes indistinguithable)

Third hale Voice:

T (rometimes indistinguishable)

Fumile Caller; ~ FC

feazEAEAEAE 3

(Recarding begins ams: discussion)

—flecp with Spider. And sce | can tell you ssyrhing you wanns know about
Y.

Howw long's his pevis?

U, showt six inches

It e mesiom?

18 medom, yesh

Atbest And what—what posiion did you gy stees in.
0, et me just el you this, he's o ack-cabbt, ther's sl he .
10

(oaging)

‘Fop-on, hop-off.

Qsughing)

S it wasn'tvery Jong?



[image: image8.png]o, um, b sid samelbing sbout heving prosateinfections or something-—
Uprow of taughier.

Get Spider—get Syider onthe phone and esk him--

He change—he changed His phone numbts. We dor' even have it
Ohman.

(Lavglt Gnavdible over others)

S0 how long—2nd —srd—snd—when ke binged ya, how long did it lase?
“Bout 130 mimtes.

You'se Kidding me? -

Fm oot oking

What posiion. from behing?

No, firs t was missionary. After | gave i, ume-
Right, el

Youknow. Veah

You—yor gave bim oral?

See and then, likew

Did he give you orai? God T hope net.
uddind-tough) On

Wha do you mean you hop pox?

15 just not good gaing down on & hesvier s chick on oral. There's some
cheese down there.

You knaw what, he didn even tel you the shole siory on why I'm beavy.
And be 6idn' 1611 you thar § am Josing weight mow.

Break niape.

kecording resumes.

1 g5 heavy because of my illness. 1 s called on csting disorder,

Vesh, cating disordess are au lness (naudible),
o, no, .

vins called (imaudible—cheseing) Buffe hee tros & day, with 8 sde order
of Wendy's ies.

Spier was trying 10 make sure tha L mie every day.
Loughing.
He did a—he obviously éid 2 oo cb.

e was irying—he was 1rying 10 pump you up & e bt?
(Lavghiog)
The was like, ft1en that rukey for Thanksgiving.
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Uproar of laughver.
(Amigs the laughing) You goys don't vaderstand,

T'm gonna get this breast nice and~ Cop somebody check Breni, he’s having
4 convulsion over here?

Contimous aghier.

Sometody check Bren, h's heving & convulsion.
Deep inhale.

Easy, Brem

Laughing, nhales, snoriing. et

Why—ss he rying 10 purop you up e bt
Gaughing)

Ase you ke 3 Bal Park Plank—Frark you pump when we bang ya?
Flump when you bang her?

10°s  Bal Park Frank—is, You purmp when you bang her, How big are you?
What does it matier?

Well, cause 11 just waana g a Graudible)-
She'e big, I've seen her

(Laughing)

How big srould you say, Spice”

Uk, I'd say sbout 250, 260.

Oy, s0 she's big gl Yeah

“That's ot (o bad

(Langhing) What?
Am What

‘Whnt are you taking about (raudible)?

1'm sayiog she-—she necds o Jose i & hundred pounds
~Yeah, no big deal

A fundsed pounds, man.
Thar's ot 00 bad.

‘Adrigh, tand by, mo—more of tis—mre of this—

(Un background, erying) V'msarry - (beeping sound)... ssd 1 just wamt you 10
Knowe it ...

Endofiape.
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SEGMENT 5

Msle Host:

Second Male Vaice
Thied Mate Voios:
Female “ilary”  FH

November 26, 2001, T00-9:00 AM

M

5M (sometimes indistinguishsble)
M {sometimes indistingyishable)

Fempale"Sarah™ FS

g@g¥e § 5¥ FEESEE

gz gEggag?

£
£

(Recording begins amidst discussion)

That s s nice booty

tha1—that's points sgainst you. I'm gonna be honest with you

Okey, okay.

Novo.

Unless you'se evting me cll~—unless we're having phone sex later tonight

You know, you're--you're solidly in lke tenth place right now.
Lavgh.

Alright, e-cocan va get 1 get a lte bit rhore of the ass, O tight there, yeah,
Yeah

Now can get a o sho, because the fon: shot (insudible). Yeah right
here. Ohman. Whos,

See Hilary, we'te professionais
Fair enough.

See We'ee lke the ice-men. We've scen it before.
Thavetae.

This does nothing for me. Hilery. You don't anderstand, you know—] mesn
i 31 meam, you know, Not ke | manna go home and 1ake these pictures
200 mesnurbate off 10 you

o, ye, sue.

No, niothay would be scrally e ef the question,

Qeuahing)

CLaughing) Not you

See ) wama— wanna gt o rom pany shot Frofh you Hlary,

You know why T haven't dons fram—from: panty shois?

Uhe—by the sy, Ttove your finger nals, Oh bu-shey—-They feel so good an
‘my boys, by the vy

O yesh,
Good God, (Iaugh).

Veah. finaudiblel chill out. (naudibie), you're thsowing 8 wet baske on
(naudible)

1
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SMiMH No, I (inaudible).

m anghing)

e inoucibl) ey would, 1 meon,thr—har's one of my foriies
M The ik onthe boys?

o Oh yesh,nel o he bogs

M Exactly.

i Exacily. See—she knows

™M Oh, you'rdone haby” You could--

H (Taiking. in background. muffled)

M What's tht?

A Gnsudivte) shaved sght?

MR Oh yesh. I'm gonma—(insudible) my baye., yesh
i (Tallarg,inbackgrousd, mfled)

My Does ho—does he sheve'em?
P8 O yesh

™M Have you seen shaved boys before?
™ Yeah (moffed -3 oh yesh.
i

My boys sre—my whole deal doven there is shaved. 1 got the cleanest
Presentaion intown. (insudible)

™ That's good. That's sood. No—no halrs in the testh and stufl.

M (Moaning) Right, right.

M 50 why ae you—ohy are yow—shy—are yow—est you good st rel? Are
youa big ora queeri?

™ “Vean, T'm a big orel quesn. | used 10 have my tongue pierced, And thei T
ook st ot bute—ycah. 1 like giving. 1 dan' seaty enjoy goiia’ thoug.

e Realy?

m Yea,

N Voudrtber jos give and give and give?

™ T4T rater give —yesh

™M For like an hawr—s hof norstop. Can you--

M Can you go—can you g0 » balf-hour solid?

M Veah but my cheeks would hurt

M Right

m They start huring up in here you know

™ M b,

M

TU-T' give you a Fitte bit of res.
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Wow, Toar's my siyle God hat's nice.

Yedh

We can—we can go for orel of ~ I—we c& do ke & half-hout insercourse
Ginautible)

Yea b she's definitely Ginaudiblc) wmore sad mare (nevdibic).
nandivhe)

She's (inaudible)—she's {inaudibic) more and more (inaudible)
She doesa't Sk geting i, but she ke giving it

(Ineudibie} 1 like that.

Waghing)

1 g0t frst s om her by the way, okey? | just sant eserybody 10 kv that
a1 st s on e Brent 50 don't you be calling et toda.
o)

1P Brest cals o before | do ang up on i, okay?

Yeah Gaughiog), will do

Thars relty fonny

I e, Bron.

Mk suse you you—ysah Brene ande~dorL 15y 1o o Bubbe iter
Can L come over and utile)

BoButba

hsimicking) Hllo, s Bubln. How yoo daing?

@anghing)

(Snll mimicking) (insudible)

Somyou dor't—Gnsnditle

Qaughing)

Conversaiion fodes out. Break.

Recording begin omids comversation,

Yeun

aualbi, tell the e

3 cantring George i e for truth s brandesstng (mvdible).
Did you experiment in high schoot?

Not i high schoch, sbaut sx months a5
Oh,okey, ot n igh school

Yesh--{inaudible}

spYsEYEEEUED gaggddg EEE

EER SRS 1

Heve you—have 300 ever ex--evperimented with a chick before?
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ot witha ctick, no.

Whot 60 you mesn, not wilh a chick? T mean, obviously you've experimented
it goysbefore.

With guys yeah
There's—there’s—here’s cwo squaions-
With s couple goys, yeah.

(neudible)

Ob you've Yad two guys before? Let's talk about that.
Yeah

Wansvait hold on, you’ve had w0 gays before
At one time, yeah.

Yadid?

Yeah

Hemmim, 1 0o,

Canwe flk sbout hat?

Vieah we con kinde talk about that

‘Where—when did t happen? Hov long sgof

1 was eightcen. 1 was a freshman in collese.
Fight. And you banged 1o guys ogeher ot once?
What schosl did you—whan schooh did you go1o?

Well 1—nooah... 1 fived in Hickery, Nonh Carcling, 1nd then 1 went to
callege in Greensboro.

Right. Right. So anyway (inaudibley+
Sl wem 10 UNC Greensbore.

Was 1t your boyfriend and one of his Riends? Was that what it was?
No, it wass't n bayiend, neithet one of thees.

Too stron—1vro strenge guys?

Well ome of them ['d kinda been banging for a while, you know.
Right.

And then the other one was fust Kind of & fandamn Ut got thrown into the mix
s night,

How—haw did thet happen?
1 don's knovw,

Are you teling the tnth, of sr¢ you making this up?
No,Iswear, No, no, Ireally swear.

Were they—wer they daing i af the same time? Or did they take ms?

13
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Yeah, shsolutely!

They'd ke turs,

Nof It wes the same time on you 1 know it was
No—no it resly wasn'd 1 was--

T wasn't cne fram the frons, one from the back?
Nol 19 probably explode.
on'tthat what you wanted?

What—both of them & the same time?

Right

U, kind of

Were you drunk?

Yes, 1was dronk,

bsolutely. Of course yourre 20ing 10 hide behind that (naudible)..-but 1
dor't beleve that (ioaucibie).

Uth._.ihat's okay... 50 they (00k rums buh?
Right?

Yo

How—how long id it Jst? Was it  prefry—an al)righ exgy Graudibic)?
U, it was a 008 hour i Jeast,

How many orgesms did you havel

You know, I've never had an orgasm during sex.

WHAT?

Well—now hold on. Thet's—ihal's slmost & challenge for me now.
Laugh)

Yonrve never had ax orgasm from sex.

T swens

You've never had en orgasm before?

A it makes o o damn mad

You've never—heve you ever had ons through oral?

No.

N,

‘Well yesh, she does't ke orsl.

Welloryermshe fo—yesh she—sh hates oral

Wow.

o you—you never—you know why? Beczuse you've never had 3 guy.
property stimlate your g-spot. That's why.

4
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FH 1 mean, that could be,

M Yeah

S Thar's—no, no—that’s not-

s Bun] hink s cause ] masturbate foo mch,

MH Fow—how often do you masturbate!

m Uty

i Be honest.

M She locks ik 8 masturbatar

m Usuly once 2 day. Yeah~ 1'm o masturbator.

s Uch man

M Now—now 8o yeu do it with 8 vibrster? O do you use just your ngers?

SWTM Ginsudible amongs selves) Gough)

m Just my binds.

o Really?

™M Water—do you use the water tick?

M eah, do youuse-r

™ Yo

i ATot of women do the water deal now-a-days. Thal's—i tends 1o be very
vopuls.

" No... o,

Fs See, Lior't—3 don's e that st all. T rther use a 103,

M Gnaudibley

i Wow.

™ T4 ether use my band

e Hose—haw bour you, Saraht How efien do you mesturbace?

¥s U, notvery often becavse, - g2t Jo of boote.

M Ob-bviously you got George sround, Graudlle), right?

¥s Ves, cxactly. But 11 dg bove s 035, 0.

Mt Right

s 56,180, when b’ not wround

i Tiow, iy are you uh— do you usc 1oy s 7

1 Thave ntoy. Butl dont really ey i

M Sho—she's  hand masurbator

M Righ

™ Yeah, Tma hend megrurbator

N

She—she's a hand gqueen,

1
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Wow. Now see—and you do
Ve

You say you do it about every day?

7 sonetimes 1 get going one day and 1 right go several imes thet day.
M o0oh. (sighing}

ebout every day?

What's the most limes, recently thet you mesturoeted in one day?
Oh magbe like, seven or cigh

T one.dey?

Yeah. . (sighing).

Whoa (lsugh).

Yesh,

Naw, can you bave an ofgasm tvery time?

Yesh

Hub—see that's the beauiy of being & chick. This is—vb—

See us guys, we con‘1—there’s no way we could 40 seven o eight imes
{insugible—(king over one another)

Veah, we can't Gneudible). Thvee would be—ub—the most.
Right
1 mean ] can do, like thiry seconds in berween em,

Can you d6 one right now—can you do one right sow?
No. Gravdivie)

Well, yau could—yeu could, but you wo't
Well Leould, but 1 won's. Exacily

Why wor't you?

Cause ¥'m100 pervous

Ceme on.

D've never done # in fiat of ciher peogle.

How bout we—hawr bout we, uh, close the studio nd iC6 Juss be.and you in
heze.

Mo {leugh}

‘Well—how beut we put you in  foom by yourself—
In whose room?

O—overthe telephone, and vou do T

avghing) 1 don't know if | coud do that,

Mow see that wovld be—butthat would be landmark, Ginsudib)
That would bel

‘Okny then. L mean—and—
16
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We coukd put you in Bubba's offics.

1 could—1 coutd put you in my affice. You've been in my office. §could
shuie

Tve becn n e
Okay can-
Tlove the carpes, by the way.

‘Thank you very much. And you're back could be hitring ther carpet here
soon.

(aughing)

But what I'm saying is—thas yo cen geton my couch. You can call me over

the tekephone. Tl lock she door. You kaow there’s no windows or anything
in there?

Righ
And o can—you know... e i horey, £ you wouldn’ bave hrown me
the bone inseyi18 you masturcate 8 o, how—voald 1 even hove asked f of
Jou o

Right

Thare e

You offeed he nformation.

16

So, weuld here b amy sty | could put youinthre?

dor'tknow. Does f increase my chancet o gtting boobe”

Well— i 50, it does, yooh

Yourhink s0?

Sobi

ihink 5 3 (e equation as 10 who wins and who doesa's win.
Veah, we have 16 work out 8 deal on that

U, el possibly, yeah,

O, skay.

So, 1 mean, weuld you 80 that for me? T mean, and you know what
Gnsodivle)-

Pethape.

Tve been doing (his o 2 long long time, and 1l be able 10 16llifit's ke or
ot Crse Pve been doing this or 2 lang long Hme.

Vesh,

1knowe-r

‘But I'm pot acisy when 1 do'it
Nottell?
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o, mcan there’s no—there's no--
Deep breaibing from kv source,

Well i, e eally. 1's more like T hold my breath ozl i happens, s0d then,
you know,

Well—ckay, when it finally—svhen it finally—when it fnelly happens what
do you dot T mesa

Tiost I

there and breathe

Soird be—jou're trving 1o say we wouldn's getanything ot of it a1
oumigh—no, no. Cause there's o need to be vocal when these’s--
See thav's~—see that's why you'd have 1o doit inthe sudio where ) could
wwaich. Cause I coukde—] could give play by play then

Well, Gavghing)

zab, sce she—she thoughi she could gel out of i (inaudible).

(ughing), no—3 wasn't—1 wasty't i to 881 out of i, I'm just saying.

Tim just caying Hilary, | mean you kno, the bortom tine
can doi fur you?

(Laughing)

e, she's i

Qnaviviey

But ' ot o

Veah (insudibie) o this urap.

Would you be willng to do that o no?
No. (lughing)

ou gotia-, keep—kesp going in this lne..
Howbout1 o How bowt T dois?
(Sl ovghing), no. Mo way.

Tow bout ) doit for you?

o cando.

Why pot?

Qraucible)

‘Now see, you're single?

(insuiie)

' sige,

Right?

Yeah

ie—=Maybe Saxeh

Qirandible) Fight. And you kaow—obviously, you knaw. Yo."\e anracted to
me. 1 can ell—a litle sparkle in your eye.

1
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gag

CLaugh)

“Youlike &—you ke + strong man Fike me
Right,

ice wager and earmer

Exactly.

Large pecis.

Exectly

Clean shaven.

Right

Sold, rogged, an

Mo e, (leveh)

(Laughing)

11 could do it for you abmost

Almon,

Well ] mcan—}.

have you—ie i beyond the -is it beyand the ceslon of
having a gy masturbate you wha—when you like him? Has it ever
Happened? You gotta come at orgam...

Yesh

Rigt,

Cneudible) the o1gas,
No, no orgases

S0, you—yos can't—even s MAN trying 1o masturbate yor, you can nos.
orgasan.

N

Waw,

There's a fusttime for cverything isw’s here
That's crear.

know, in's o weird?

(Inaveiie)

Youknow, 1 gsve (inmudibie) ora on the radic.
Really?

Yeah and you sy you don't ke t—but ya—maybe he season you don’t ike
it bcaust you heven't gofen i corresly.
Vel that s e

Well,you ko whet, ) mean—that could be.

Right, Sa i you wann hike yaurself up over here and you know, I could
show Y-

It
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Leughing)
e propesway o do it
{Laugh) ¥ appreciate the offer.
Okay. Was that & solid rio?
“That's a solid o,
Famastc
avghing)
(Grandible, ] eheg—1 tred oy beg of wicks, e exhausied them all
vean
1was teylng ok it 10 he—(imaudible)—
Bt you made n good run & it though.
Let me show you my four—mmy four—-my four—you knew, 1 gt 50 many

d@ifferent bag of ricks. 1 went from her doing herself in privae.
Righ

Qaughing)

“To her doin it ere and it me coaching and giviog ply by play.
CLougbing)

Chea i he seudio

Qaughy

To Sarah dcing 1,

Ciny.

To—o e doing it And § srvek out sl four—four sikes and you're—
yeues slidy our Beent.

Yeah

Right

And you €t even foui one off man

No,1didn'teven foul ome o

Goaudidle)

(Loughing)

Wel thark you fo being—for being 50 nom-sccommodating todey thowgh,
ey

T sory.

You—yon theew me all these emotionel bones, end you're expecting I'm

‘gonna Bite o several, &nd ) did—nnd then you'se not sble to faclitate any of
them.

Ttied
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SEGMENT 6: November 27. 2001, 7:30.9:
Male Host: M
MaleCobost  SH
Female Guest FGi1-2]
FG1 No, we workin . s like s (insudible) offie.
M Right
Fo1 Off.sice. Butit's ke near it 5o,
FG2 Yeah
M Right, righ
] Wel, you know ladies, we're gani teke s pistuse of yous boobs now. Ate you
= are you embarsassed?
Fo1 Laughing)
FG2 Very. (g Very.
M “Tellthe ladies that ere listening 10 the thow and are possibly gonm be pari of
he 12 books of Chrisumes, is ot that bad
761 No, is et
M We're rying 1o mike it comfariable for you lovely ladies. 1, you know, 1
would be embarrassed 150, i hed to go 102 ~
Faz Qanghing)
[ in room full of s bunch of girls and show my smoll pesis.
Fe1a2 (Lavgting)
M Inevitbly that's what you're doing, Fight. 1 meen - ahthough - sy boobs and
‘Your - your boobs and and -+
sH 1thick buobs and penis are way differeat.
Mo Yeah, 1 meen, you know -
sH You—yon can g1 & boob enlasgement
MH (Talking over second hosi) one's just {nsudible) and the other one's just
add-os, you know?
FO122 Veah, but st its insvdible).
MH Veah it s sevus] but you guys ave sexy. You bnow what I'm saying? M ain't
Jike you some block-rocking roed whores You guys e hor.
FGla2

Cogh)
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Vou goys ae hot, 1 mean, you know what I'm saying? And - you know, the
only thing you guys ave missing is a real mic setof boobies

(Mumbling) yeah Gnaudible).

Alright, wel, ets get some pictures here. We'll go with you isi though,
Lisa. Are you Lisa or Vanessa?

Vanessa.

Okay Venesss.

Alrigh, do } ke 1 il he way ofT 07—

Nono 0, (naudibie).. get o my--

You gana ger on my boosser chait here though
Qavghing)

Are you guys married? You guys maried?
No.

T'm pecertly single.

O, you'rerecenily single? And how ‘bout you. You single of are you
martied?

Yeah, | huve a boyfiend. He's scivally listening in the car lavgh) right now.
WheWha's s name?

Brandon.

What't he do for 6 ving?

He s 8 mainienance supervisor
Right.

Jaior?

(Laughing) No-o-

That mean he ehanges oil.
(Leughing)

(-sughing) No

(Sruttesing - inaudible) When vas the last ime you ead Brandon screwed?
Be horest.

Last igh.

You guys screwed lut sight?
M heu,

How wasit?

Ttwas good

‘What posiion is your fevorkte? 1k, las wight, what'd you guys end up =
Leughing)

2
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FG1

FG1

s actually jost—with bim o 10p. Cause 1 had surgery so ] can't do it a lot of
diffesent ways.

Really, what kind of surgers? Like a—Iike a ovarian kinda deal?
Mmm hmm. 1 had my right one removed.

O, are you gomna be ckay on thar deal?

Yeah

Are you sure?

Yes

Right, 5o thar—that kinda himders ike the doggie and the (inauible)-~
Yesh

Right

Yeah

Does that mean you can't heve kids at sl o, hiow, | mean, does thet affect
you?

10s just limied. 1% like, couse you only have one ovary now.
Righ, osiesd of rwo.

Right

You ol got one goslie, insiead of two goale’s blacking outthe Gnsudible)
Roght Gauging).

(Sl alking, naudivle).

Right

AJight, 0 you—did you give him ors e ight?

No.

Wy not?

Cause

Yoo don's ke thet.

o, 1 4ot often,

Wel you Sowned it up, ke possibly you had & big orsl Grsudibie). And, 1
mean, thar's very imporsant fo us guys, 1o b bonest ik yo.
Well be acually ges 2 L.

e gets a ot ofora.

Just o st night (tughing) urs.

Really, how ofien does Brandon get oral fram—from yous hl seif?
Usualy.

Once a day?

Yesh
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M
Fol
MH
sH

Reaty

(naucitie)

Tmean, hat's 2l

Yesh, Thar's preces—that's mice odds. Tha uh, preny good.

Do you uh—do you sb—do Y00, et me see do you rcycle or 0 ou--
(Lavghing)

You th—yon th-you don't wasic a drap? (inaudible) ght?

Right.

You do that 007

Fon oo,

Wows youlitle sazy (maudieic).

When you lock st her ¥ou ould €VEn, you wouldn't even believe s

God, yau're so—you are 59 consrvative and school-ieacher-like, Ut yet you
knower

Laughing)
you give oral sex, you don wasie  drop, God, Wowt
Langhing)

AlSgt, well get on sy Boosier—ses that Hule boosier chair over therc? My
“hady boos—And you ot tation—

She's gous e tooo—

Ot the belly butlon (inaudible)... Now Brent's Ginaudible)

Oh seah. She's a freak. {imoodithc)

e yon a frea
Nis official
Well-

16 offcial, Brenc's Gneodibie) on i
Qasghing)

Righ.
Ase you a freak? ] meam, y0u know ke when you're geting’ 12id e you
vocal,

M .

Do you tell Brandon, “harder, hardes, and f- e hardes.” the whele pine
yards?

Yeah, Youcan'tjust lay there.

Right. Wow, Okay, cou). Well les—lets get you on my shady, oh itle
booster chai here.

2
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sH
FG1

Brent, 'm gonta

ve y0u Like ren dolfers and see if you can get one of the
producers 1 buy me & new shady chair. I'm afraid thel some—one of these

Iadies with the high heels sre gonna pake through that fnle hole, you know
what ['m saying?

Take 'em off. You can take~
Yeah, there you go.

Look at you. Well—vwhat are you like a ize 3, a size 17 Alright, gef on the

chair ihere. Ob—no, just s—no stand, stand. Dor eit, just stand. You cen
Keep your—you cen keep vour heels on baby. I'm sure vou're coofinaudible).
There you go. Wow, look at you,

(Gleging)
Just (inaudible)ndon't be—don't be nervous, swreetie.
(In background, insudible)

Hold on, vou're bayfiiend isn't gorma see your boobs? Cavse you're hat
camscious of them? But 1 wanna help facl

by

Qnbackgrome) ok,

¥hope }cantoo, 1 really do. -
(Ggaling)

o,

1 hope (imaudible) picks you.

e you on same new boobies,

Brandor' gota be pitsed, man. Here we ar chicking out hor=
Yeal here we arc hecking ou he e, nd he never—

And e seve even sees them

Becsuse you kaew, I can lock novw.

We'll describe them 10 you, Brandon,

Laugh)

Yeah but Tweuld-

Tape e,

25
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SEGMENT % cember 27, 2001, $:00:9:60 A]
Mae Host. H
Sesond ile: Y
Thid Make: T (someumes indistingulshable)
Singer 51
Choras: oH
(Rocording brecls i arwidst descussicn)
M Fnco s 1 hud bi ones but, 1 guess 1 g0t big omes. F—never have been
S0y that, gy - then my tesiclés were ab-abrormally large
st begina n e background.
™M The 5ot ma e over seen em-—tegicles tat big. Poros o7 anyihiog.
™ Seriousty
™M Yeah
M Sericusly.
M Yeah,
™ You oould break ‘e into Gnaviivle) (garbled rumbiing!
™ Yo
™ Qg
£ 1 ik you might have gerital ehephaniinas, 'm serious. You beter gt those.
ings chasked vk
™ Vo gt dbocrmat vzed boa.
Uninown hele. Yeah~ 12y’ huge.
Al bnghing, Sorg fades over disvussion.
st (T s} Well he'sthe big fe g of shock jock mpropristy.
MH 1gotbig anes.
el And Bubbe's bacrlceg s ace of the cocomi-size varity.
SM&TM  Theywere henging
5 A he wore pxlarge size dipers when he was very smell bn fac. s
biieeps were 5o dara Lig 1431 Bubba couldn't even crawl. (Cliorus of
muoic begms) OnBuoba’s g0 big bableeplts,
M Ohyoodn
™ Sesiounly
51 G big (e s
M

They e esimonios.
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‘They re shaped like beach balls. And they're stnky big batblesp)lis. Ot Ned
has big 6a(biecp i, and Spice Boy, he's got big ba(uleep)ls

YVeab—tuge. (tmaudivle]

But Bubba's g1 the biggeste-

Tuge (oughing).

(With charus) Baelecp)ls of them all

‘Bubbe's bableep)lls are ahways iiching and they're fll of lirde crabs. And
Brent fkes 0 bownce the up and down upon s chi.

¥ mean, God.

Ockh

And i you i that yOUrs v bigger, then You axe just  bleepaking lar.
Bubbe's balbleepis could heer Alask i they ever caught on fis

Bubba's balolcp)lls bounce on the foor every ime be gets undrested.

Sesun

A hose hings would be a Dcup ifyou stuck ther o yout ches

Tgot bigcner.

Bubba's bablecp)ls ar fiem and mesty and they neves ever drocp. One tme.

Toven sas 3 block man try to donk on hrough a hoop. (Chorus of music
begins] Ob Bubba’s ot big batbleep)ls.

Thet's huge

Giam big ba(bleep)ls.

Seftballe.

They're shaped ke beach bolls. And they're inky b ba(blecpils.
Menging,

es Ned his big be(bleer)lis and oh, Spice Boy's 50t big batbleepls.
(Fith chars) But Bubo's got the biggesin-

That's huge
With chorvs) Badbleeps of them aflt

(@n buckground) Oh—he's yol big balls. He's got big bels. He's gorbig
alls {cominues repeaiing)

You got some centaloupes doven there.
And he's justtching 10 tell you about them.
Do they look big Trom the sides?

A nauseum,

T think it would look firly impressive ifl would show i to you puye.
Eeeuh
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(501l repeating  backgrownd) Oh—he's got big balls. He's got big balls.
He's ot big balls (continuing).

Tn-grown bairs.
Got big ones.

(Coniinuig 7 bockeround) ~he's go big balls. He's g big balls (il
repeairg).

Pimples
Eeuh, God
Cortage cheese.

{In background sl repeating, then chorus) But Bubba's got the biggesi—
Vesh, you need 10 stan (humping (Hhuriping noise) on them ke the produce.
@ background) Balls of them allt

Chafling.

Sesus,

(In background) Oh—he's got big balls, He's 561 big balls repeaing).
Ssimenell.

2




Attachment B
FCC List of Small Entities

    October 2002

ATTACHMENT B
	FCC List of Small Entities

As described below, a “small entity” may be a small organization,

a small governmental jurisdiction, or a small business.



	(1)  Small Organization 

	Any not-for-profit enterprise that is independently owned and operated and 

is not dominant in its field.

  

	(2)  Small Governmental Jurisdiction

	Governments of cities, counties, towns, townships, villages, school districts, or 

special districts, with a population of less than fifty thousand.



	(3)  Small Business

	Any business concern that is independently owned and operated and 

is not dominant in its field, and meets the pertinent size criterion described below.



	Industry Type
	Description of Small Business Size Standards

	Cable Services or Systems

	Cable Systems 
	Special Size Standard – 

Small Cable Company has 400,000 Subscribers Nationwide or Fewer

	Cable and Other Program Distribution 
	$12.5 Million in Annual Receipts or Less



	Open Video Systems 
	

	Common Carrier Services and Related Entities

	Wireline Carriers and Service providers 
	1,500 Employees or Fewer

	Local Exchange Carriers, Competitive Access Providers, Interexchange Carriers, Operator Service Providers, Payphone Providers, and Resellers
	

	Note:  With the exception of Cable Systems, all size standards are expressed in either millions of dollars or number of employees and are generally the average annual receipts or the average employment of a firm.  Directions for calculating average annual receipts and average employment of a firm can be found in 

13 CFR 121.104 and 13 CFR 121.106, respectively.



	International Services

	International Broadcast Stations
	$12.5 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

	International Public Fixed Radio (Public and Control Stations)
	

	Fixed Satellite Transmit/Receive Earth Stations
	

	Fixed Satellite Very Small Aperture Terminal Systems
	

	Mobile Satellite Earth Stations
	

	Radio Determination Satellite Earth Stations
	

	Geostationary Space Stations
	

	Non-Geostationary Space Stations
	

	Direct Broadcast Satellites
	

	Home Satellite Dish Service
	

	Mass Media Services

	Television Services
	$12 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

	Low Power Television Services and Television Translator Stations
	

	TV Auxiliary, Special Broadcast and Other Program Distribution Services
	

	Radio Services
	$6 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

	Radio Auxiliary, Special Broadcast and Other Program Distribution Services
	

	Multipoint Distribution Service
	Auction Special Size Standard –

Small Business is less than $40M in annual gross revenues for three preceding years

	Wireless and Commercial Mobile Services

	Cellular Licensees
	1,500 Employees or Fewer

	220 MHz Radio Service – Phase I Licensees
	

	220 MHz Radio Service – Phase II Licensees
	Auction special size standard -

Small Business is average gross revenues of $15M or less for the preceding three years (includes affiliates and controlling principals)

Very Small Business is average gross revenues of $3M or less for the preceding three years (includes affiliates and controlling principals)

	700 MHZ Guard Band Licensees
	

	Private and Common Carrier Paging
	

	Broadband Personal Communications Services (Blocks A, B, D, and E)
	1,500 Employees or Fewer

	Broadband Personal Communications Services (Block C)
	Auction special size standard -

Small Business is $40M or less in annual gross revenues for three previous calendar years

Very Small Business is average gross revenues of $15M or less for the preceding three calendar years (includes affiliates and persons or entities that hold interest in such entity and their affiliates)

	Broadband Personal Communications Services (Block F)
	

	Narrowband Personal Communications Services


	

	Rural Radiotelephone Service
	1,500 Employees or Fewer

	Air-Ground Radiotelephone Service
	

	800 MHz Specialized Mobile Radio
	Auction special size standard -

Small Business is $15M or less average annual gross revenues for three preceding calendar years

	900 MHz Specialized Mobile Radio
	

	Private Land Mobile Radio
	1,500 Employees or Fewer

	Amateur Radio Service
	N/A

	Aviation and Marine Radio Service
	1,500 Employees or Fewer

	Fixed Microwave Services
	

	Public Safety Radio Services
	Small Business is 1,500 employees or less

Small Government Entities has population of less than 50,000 persons

	Wireless Telephony and Paging and Messaging
	1,500 Employees or Fewer

	Personal Radio Services
	N/A

	Offshore Radiotelephone Service
	1,500 Employees or Fewer



	Wireless Communications Services
	Small Business is $40M or less average annual gross revenues for three preceding years

Very Small Business is average gross revenues of $15M or less for the preceding three years 

	39 GHz Service
	

	Multipoint Distribution Service 
	Auction special size standard (1996) –

Small Business is $40M or less average annual gross revenues for three preceding calendar years

Prior to Auction –

Small Business has annual revenue of $12.5M or less

	Multichannel Multipoint Distribution Service
	$12.5 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

	Instructional Television Fixed Service
	

	Local Multipoint Distribution Service
	Auction special size standard (1998) –

Small Business is $40M or less average annual gross revenues for three preceding years

Very Small Business is average gross revenues of $15M or less for the preceding three years 

	218-219 MHZ Service
	First Auction special size standard (1994) –

Small Business is an entity that, together with its affiliates, has no more than a $6M net worth and, after federal income taxes (excluding carryover losses) has no more than $2M in annual profits each year for the previous two years

New Standard – 

Small Business is average gross revenues of $15M or less for the preceding three years (includes affiliates and persons or entities that hold interest in such entity and their affiliates)

Very Small Business is average gross revenues of $3M or less for the preceding three years (includes affiliates and persons or entities that hold interest in such entity and their affiliates)

	Satellite Master Antenna Television Systems
	$12.5 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

	24 GHz – Incumbent Licensees
	1,500 Employees or Fewer

	24 GHz – Future Licensees


	Small Business is average gross revenues of $15M or less for the preceding three years (includes affiliates and persons or entities that hold interest in such entity and their affiliates)

Very Small Business is average gross revenues of $3M or less for the preceding three years (includes affiliates and persons or entities that hold interest in such entity and their affiliates)

	Miscellaneous

	On-Line Information Services
	$18 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

	Radio and Television Broadcasting and Wireless Communications Equipment Manufacturers
	750 Employees or Fewer

	Audio and Video Equipment Manufacturers
	

	Telephone Apparatus Manufacturers (Except Cellular)
	1,000 Employees or Fewer

	Medical Implant Device Manufacturers
	500 Employees or Fewer

	Hospitals
	$29 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

	Nursing Homes
	$11.5 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

	Hotels and Motels
	$6 Million in Annual Receipts or Less

	Tower Owners
	(See Lessee’s Type of Business)


SEPARATE STATEMENT OF

CHAIRMAN MICHAEL K. POWELL

Re:
Clear Channel Broadcasting Licenses, Inc., Licensee of Station WPLA(FM), Callahan, Florida; WCKT(FM), Port Charlotte, Florida (Formerly Station WRLR(FM)); Citicasters Licenses, L.P., Licensee of Station WXTB(FM), Clearwater, Florida; Capstar TX Limited Partnership, Licensee of Station WRLX(FM), West Palm Beach, Florida.

Seven broadcasts, twenty-six indecency violations, four public file violations and fines equaling $755,000.  By today’s action, we provide yet another example of this Commission’s commitment to enforce its rules and regulations—especially as it relates to indecent programming engulfing our broadcast airwaves.

As the Commission with the strongest enforcement record in decades, it should come as little surprise that this Commission’s indecency enforcement has dwarfed its predecessors.  I am proud of the fact that over the past three years, we have proposed nearly twice the dollar amount of indecency fines than the previous two Commissions combined (over seven years) and ten times the amount of fines proposed by the last Commission.

Now is not, however, a time to rest on our laurels and no broadcaster should believe that we will.  Indeed, due to the leadership on this issue from Commissioner Martin, the Commission will soon begin considering fines for each separate utterance found indecent in a broadcast.  In addition, we will continue to look to Congress to dramatically increase the enforcement penalties available to us to prosecute clear indecency violations.  I applaud Chairman Upton, Chairman Tauzin, Congressmen Dingell and Markey, Chairman McCain, Senator Hollings and the many others on both sides of the aisle in Congress for providing vital leadership on this issue.  

As the Commission continues the challenging task of balancing the protections of the First Amendment with the need to protect our young, these increased enforcement actions will allow the Commission to turn what is now a “cost of doing business” into a significant “cost for doing indecent business.”

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF 
COMMISSIONER MICHAEL J. COPPS,

DISSENTING

Re: Clear Channel Broadcasting Licenses, Inc., Licensee of Stations WPLA(FM), Callahan, Florida, and WCKT(FM), Port Charlotte, Florida (Formerly Station WRLR(FM)); Citicasters Licenses, L.P., Licensee of Station WXTB(FM), Clearwater, Florida; Capstar TX Limited Partnership, Licensee of Station WRLX(FM), West Palm Beach, Florida, Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture

In this case, four Clear Channel stations aired on several occasions graphic and explicit sexual content as entertainment.  The extreme nature of these broadcasts and the fact that the show at issue has been the subject of repeated indecency actions gives the FCC the obligation to take serious action.  Instead, the majority proposes a mere $27,500 fine for each incident.  Such a fine will be easily absorbed as a “cost of doing business” and fails to send a message that the Commission is serious about enforcing the nation’s indecency laws.  “Cost of doing business fines” are never going to stop the media’s slide to the bottom.

To fulfill our duty under the law, I believe the Commission should have designated these cases for a hearing on the revocation of these stations’ licenses, as provided for by Section 312(a)(6) of the Communications Act.  I am discouraged that my colleagues would not join me in taking a firm stand against indecency on the airwaves.  

If the Commission can’t bring itself to go to a revocation hearing, at least the Commission should have used its current statutory authority to impose a higher and meaningful fine.  The Commission could have proposed a fine for each separate “utterance” that was indecent, rather than one fine for each lengthy segment.  As Commissioner Martin points out, such an approach would have led to a significantly higher fine.  

Here, four Clear Channel stations ran several segments of the “Bubba the Love Sponge” show which contained graphic and explicit sexual content.  The majority admits that each of these stations appears to have egregiously and extensively violated the statutory ban on broadcast of indecent material numerous times.  But then the majority inexplicably determines that the appropriate recourse for this filth is a $27,500 fine for each violation.  

The majority states that, in light of Clear Channel’s history of violations of the indecency rules, other serious multiple violations “may well lead to license revocation proceedings.”  The majority fails to acknowledge that not just Clear Channel, but the “Bubba the Love Sponge” show, has been the subject of at least three previous fines for violating our nation’s indecency laws.  This is not even “three strikes and you are out” enforcement.  How many strikes are we going to give them?

This case may well lead broadcasters to believe that this Commission will never use the enforcement authority it currently has available to it.  The message to licensees is clear.  Even egregious repeated violations will not result in revocation of a license.  Rather, they will result only in a financial penalty that is merely a cost of doing business. 

The time has come for this Commission to take a firm stand against the “race to the bottom” as the level of discourse on the public’s airwaves gets progressively coarser and more violent.  Our enforcement actions should convince broadcasters that they cannot ignore their responsibility to serve the public interest and to protect children.  The FCC’s action today fails to do so.

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF 
COMMISSIONER KEVIN J. MARTIN

Re:
Clear Channel Broadcasting Licenses, Inc., Licensee of Station WPLA(FM), Callahan, Florida, WCKT(FM), Port Charlotte, Florida; Citicasters Licenses, L.P., Licensee of Station WXTB(FM), Clearwater, Florida; Capstar TX Limited Partnership, Licensee of Station WRLX(FM), West Palm Beach, Florida, Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture

I agree with this Notice’s conclusion that the licensees at issue apparently violated our indecency rule and public file requirements. 

I write separately to emphasize again that we could, and should, be placing higher fines on those who broadcast indecent programming during the hours when children may be watching or listening, in violation of our rules and statute.  The governing statute targets “whoever utters” indecent or profane language, and the Commission should not continue to treat an entire program full of indecent “utterances” as just one violation.
  We should not continue to give a broadcaster who violates our indecency rule at the beginning of a program a “free pass” for the next two hours.  

In this case, I would have found numerous violations, for a total indecency fine significantly higher than that proposed (it appears there were at least 49 indecency violations, for a total forfeiture exceeding $1,000,000).

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF 
COMMISSIONER JONATHAN S. ADELSTEIN
Re:  Clear Channel Broadcasting Licenses, Inc., Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture
The Commission has a duty to enforce statutory and regulatory provisions restricting broadcast indecency.  The material broadcast by these four Clear Channel radio stations is undeniably graphic and explicit in its sexual content and clearly intended to shock listeners.  Clear Channel and, indeed, this particular “Bubba the Love Sponge” program have been the subject of repeated Commission indecency actions in the past.  Given the explicit nature of the broadcast material and the history of prior offenses, this is the type of serious repeated behavior that I believe would warrant initiation of license revocation hearings.  

In fairness, however, this material was broadcast in 2001.  The Commission clarified in an April 2003 order that it was broadening its range of enforcement approaches and tools to combat indecency on our nation’s public airwaves.  For this reason, I approve of today’s Order as legally appropriate.  The egregious nature of the material clearly warrants the statutory maximum $27,500 fine per violation.  While the Commission at all times has the authority to initiate license revocation hearings or sanction for multiple indecent utterances in a given program segment, it can be argued that the Commission was not employing these approaches at the time this material was broadcast.  Nonetheless, as we made clear last year, broadcasters are now aware that the Commission will not hesitate to use its full range of enforcement sanctions for indecent material broadcast after April 2003.  

I also acknowledge the importance of broadcasters adhering to the public inspection file rules.  Documents pertaining to an FCC investigation are clearly within the scope of the information that must be maintained in a manner accessible to the listening public.  In this case, each of the stations inexplicably failed to include complaints related to the airing of this material in their public files.    


A broadcast license is a public privilege.  In return, broadcasters have a responsibility to serve the public.  This public interest responsibility clearly encompasses protecting children from indecency on the airwaves and facilitating public access to documentation through which the station can remain accountable to its local community and listening public.  These stations exhibited a blatant disregard for both.

� 47 U.S.C. § 503(b); 47 C.F.R. § 1.80.


� 47 C.F.R. § 73.3526(e)(10).


� Complaint of Douglas Vanderlaan, dated April 3, 2002 (“First Complaint”); Second Complaint of Douglas Vanderlaan, dated October 10, 2002 (“Second Complaint”); Third Complaint and Supplement of Douglas Vanderlaan, dated January 27, 2003 (“Third Complaint”).


� Letter from Charles W. Kelley, Chief, Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureau, to Clear Channel Broadcasting Licenses, Inc. and Citicasters Licenses, L.P., dated July 5, 2002 (“Initial LOI”); Letters from Maureen F. Del Duca, Chief, Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureau, to Clear Channel Broadcasting Licenses, Inc., Citicasters Licenses, L.P., Capstar TX Limited Partnership and Kenneth E. Wyker, Senior Vice President & General Counsel, Clear Channel Communications, Inc., dated August 18, 2003 (“Second LOI” and “Third LOI”).


� Letter from John M. Burgett, Esq., to Marlene H. Dortch, Secretary, Federal Communications Commission, dated July 15, 2002; Letter from Kenneth W. Wyker, Senior Vice President & General Counsel, Clear Channel Communications, Inc., to Marlene H. Dortch, Secretary, Federal Communications Commission, dated August 1, 2002 (“Initial LOI Response”); Letter from Kenneth W. Wyker, Senior Vice President & General Counsel, Clear Channel Communications, Inc., to Marlene H. Dortch, Secretary, Federal Communications Commission, dated August 28, 2002 (“Supplement to Initial LOI Response”); Letter from Richard W. Wolf, Vice President, Clear Channel Communications, Inc., to Marlene H. Dortch, Secretary, Federal Communications Commission, dated September 16, 2003 (“Second LOI Response”);  Letter from Richard W. Wolf, Vice President, Clear Channel Communications, Inc., to  Marlene H. Dortch, Secretary, Federal Communications Commission, dated September 16, 2003 (“Third LOI Response”); Letter from John M. Burgett, Esq., to  Judy Lancaster, Esq., Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureau


� Letter from Arthur V. Belendiuk, Esq., to Marlene H. Dortch, Secretary, Federal Communications Commission, dated August 13, 2002 (“First Vanderlaan Reply”); Letter from Douglas G. Vanderlaan to Marlene H. Dortch, Secretary, Federal Communications Commission, dated September 24, 2003. (“Second Vanderlaan Reply”)


� See 47 U.S.C. § 326.


� 18 U.S.C. § 1464. 


�  Public Telecommunications Act of 1992, Pub. L. No. 102-356, 106 Stat. 949 (1992); Action for Children’s Television v. FCC, 58 F.3d 654 (D.C. Cir 1995), cert. denied, 516 U.S. 1043 (1996) (“Act III”).


� See Attachment A.


� Supplement to Initial LOI Response at 2.


� Initial LOI Response at 1.


� Infinity Broadcasting Corp. of Los Angeles (KROQ-FM), Memorandum Opinion and Order, 17 FCC Rcd 9892, 9896, ¶¶ 17-18 (2002).





� See Third LOI Response at 1.


� U.S. Const., amend. I; Action for Children’s Television v. FCC, 852 F.2d 1332, 1344 (D.C. Cir. 1988) (“ACT I”).


� Title 18 of the United States Code, Section 1464 (18 U.S.C. § 1464), prohibits the utterance of “any obscene, indecent or profane language by means of radio communication.”  FCC  v. Pacifica Foundation, 438 U.S. 726 (1978).  See also ACT I, 852 F.2d at 1339; Action for Children’s Television v. FCC, 932 F.2d 1504, 1508 (D.C. Cir. 1991), cert. denied, 503 U.S. 914 (1992) (“ACT II”); ACT III, 58 F.3d 654.


� ACT I, 852 F.2d at 1344 (“Broadcast material that is indecent but not obscene is protected by the First Amendment; the FCC may regulate such material only with due respect for the high value our Constitution places on freedom and choice in what people may say and hear.”); ACT I, 852 F.2d at 1340, n.14 (“the potential chilling effect of the FCC’s general definition of indecency will be tempered by the Commission’s restrained enforcement policy.”)  See also United States v. Playboy Entertainment Group, Inc., 529 U.S. 803, 813-15 (2000). 





� Infinity Broadcasting Corporation of Pennsylvania, 2 FCC Rcd 2705 (1987) (subsequent history omitted) (citing Pacifica Foundation, 56 FCC 2d 94, 98 (1975), aff’d sub nom. FCC v. Pacifica Foundation, 438 U.S. 726 (1978)).  


� Industry Guidance on the Commission’s Case Law Interpreting 18 U.S.C. §1464 and Enforcement Policies Regarding Broadcast Indecency (“Indecency Policy Statement”), 16 FCC Rcd 7999, 8002, ¶¶ 7-8 (2001) (emphasis in original).


� See Initial LOI Response at 2-6.  As a preface to its analysis of each segment, Clear Channel states “Although the transcripts do include references and phrases of a sexual nature, and while some may find such material to be distasteful or offensive, these references and phrases alone do not make the broadcasts indecent.”  Id. at 2.


� The “contemporary standards for the broadcast medium” criterion is that of an average broadcast listener and with respect to Commission decisions, does not encompass any particular geographic area.  See WPBN/WTOM License Subsidiary, Inc., 15 FCC Rcd 1838, 1841 (2000).  


� Indecency Policy Statement, 16 FCC Rcd at 8002, ¶ 9 (emphasis in original).  


� Id. at 8002-15, ¶¶ 8-23.  


� Id. at 8003, ¶ 10.


� Id. at 8009, ¶ 19 (citing Tempe Radio, Inc (KUPD-FM), 12 FCC Rcd 21828 (MMB 1997) (forfeiture paid)) (extremely graphic or explicit nature of references to sex with children outweighed the fleeting nature of the references); EZ New Orleans, Inc. (WEZB(FM)), 12 FCC Rcd 4147 (MMB 1997) (forfeiture paid) (same)). 


� Id. at 8010, ¶ 20 (“the manner and purpose of a presentation may well preclude an indecency determination even though other factors, such as explicitness, might weigh in favor of an indecency finding”).


� See Attachment A passim.


� The complainant's transcript reflects bleeps of certain offensive words.  A review of the relevant tapes indicates that the letters before the word “(bleep)” in many cases were aired.  However, although the transcript suggests otherwise, a review of the relevant tape indicates that the letters after the word “(bleep)” were completely bleeped.  In any event, our indecency finding is not based on airing of the specific bleeped words. 


� See Attachment A at 1-2.  


� See Attachment A at 3-5.  


� See Attachment A at 5-7.  


� See Attachment A at 7-9.  


� See Attachment A at 9-21.  


� See Attachment A at 21-25.  


� See Attachment A at 26-28.  


� See ACT III, 58 F.3d at 660-63.    


� See supra ¶ 4. 


� Id.


� The First Complaint also included allegations of indecency with respect to three other broadcast segments.  We conclude that these broadcasts were not sufficiently graphic and/or sustained to be considered indecent and are denying the First Complaint with respect to these segments.


� 47 C.F.R. § 73.3526(e)(10).


� Id.


� See Padre Serra Communications, Inc., 14 FCC Rcd 9709 (1999) (citing Gaffney Broadcasting, Inc., 23 FCC 2d 912, 913 (1970) and Eleven Ten Broadcasting Corp., 33 FCC 706 (1962)); Surrey Front Range Limited Partnership, 71 RR 2d 882 (FOB 1992) ("Surrey").





� Second Complaint at Exhibits 1, 4.  In the Declaration of Ms. Taunton, who attempted to inspect the WXTB(FM) public file, she states that, after specifically asking to see the First Complaint, “[a] copy of the Complaint was subsequently found in the station manager’s office and made available for my review.” Id. at Exhibit 3.  However, it is clear that, had Ms. Taunton not been aware of that document, she would not have learned of it from her inspection of the file, the purpose behind the requirement that it be included in the file.





� Third LOI Response at 2.


� 47 C.F.R. § 73.3526(e)(10). 


� See First Complaint at 15-16.


� See Isothermal Community College, DA 03-3638, 2003 WL 22682096 (Enf. Bur. November 14, 2003) (citing Kaye-Smith Enterprises, 98 FCC 2d 675, 682 (1984)); Hoffart v. FCC, 787 F.2d 675 (D.C. Cir. 1986) (citing Chronicle Broadcasting Co., 19 FCC 2d 240, 244 (1969)).


� See also Second Vanderlaan Reply.


� 47 U.S.C. § 326.


� See, e.g., Licensee Responsibility to Review Records Before Their Broadcast, Notice, 28 FCC 2d 409 (1971), modified, Memorandum Opinion and Order, 31 FCC 2d 377 (1971), aff’d sub nom, Yale Broadcasting Co. v. FCC, 478 F.2d 594 (D.C. Cir. 1973), cert. denied, 414 U.S. 914 (1973).   


� 47 U.S.C. § 503(b)(1).


� 47 U.S.C. § 503(b)(1)(B); 47 C.F.R. § 1.80(a)(1); see also 47 U.S.C. § 503(b)(1)(D) (forfeitures for violation of 14 U.S.C. § 1464).  Section 312(f)(1) of the Act defines willful as “the conscious and deliberate commission or omission of [any] act, irrespective of any intent to violate” the law.  47 U.S.C. § 312(f)(1). The legislative history to Section 312(f)(1) of the Act clarifies that this definition of willful applies to both Sections 312 and 503(b) of the Act, H.R. Rep. No. 97-765, 97th Cong. 2d Sess. 51 (1982), and the Commission has so interpreted the term in the Section 503(b) context.  See, e.g., Application for Review of Southern California Broadcasting Co., Memorandum Opinion and Order, 6 FCC Rcd 4387, 4388 (1991) (“Southern California Broadcasting Co.”).  The Commission may also assess a forfeiture for violations that are merely repeated, and not willful.  See, e.g., Callais Cablevision, Inc., Grand Isle, Louisiana, Notice of Apparent Liability for Monetary Forfeiture, 16 FCC Rcd 1359 (2001) (issuing a Notice of Apparent Liability for, inter alia, a cable television operator’s repeated signal leakage).  “Repeated” merely means that the act was committed or omitted more than once, or lasts more than one day.  Southern California Broadcasting Co., 6 FCC Rcd at 4388, ¶ 5; Callais Cablevision, Inc., 16 FCC Rcd at 1362, ¶ 9.    


� 47 U.S.C. § 503(b); 47 C.F.R. § 1.80(f).


� See, e.g., SBC Communications, Inc., Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, Forfeiture Order, 17 FCC Rcd 7589, 7591, ¶ 4 (2002) (forfeiture paid). 


� 7 broadcasts x 3 stations (WXTB(FM), WRLX(FM) and WPLA(FM)) = 21 violations + 5 broadcasts by WCKT(FM) = 26 violations.


� The Commission’s Forfeiture Policy Statement and Amendment of Section 1.80 of the Rules to Incorporate the Forfeiture Guidelines, 12 FCC Rcd 17087, 17113 (1997), recon. denied, 15 FCC Rcd 303 (1999) (“Forfeiture Policy Statement”); 47 C.F.R. § 1.80(b).  The Commission has amended its rules to increase the maximum penalties to account for inflation since the last adjustment of the penalty rates.  The new rates apply to violations that occur or continue after November 13, 2000.  See Amendment of Section 1.80(b) of the Commission’s Rules and Adjustment of Forfeiture Maxima to Reflect Inflation, 15 FCC Rcd 18221 (2000).


� The maximum forfeiture amount for a single violation for the broadcast of apparently indecent material is $27,500.  47 C.F.R. § 1.80(b)(1).


� See, e.g., AMFM Radio Licenses, LLC (WWDC(FM)), Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, FCC 03-233 (rel. Oct. 2, 2003) (forfeiture paid); Citicasters Co. (KEGL(FM)), Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, 16 FCC Rcd 7546 (Enf. Bur. 2001) (forfeiture paid); Citicasters Co. (WXTB(FM)), Forfeiture Order, 15 FCC Rcd 25453 (2000) (forfeiture paid); Citicasters Co. (KSJO(FM)), Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, 15 FCC Rcd 19095 (Enf. Bur. 2000) (forfeiture paid); Citicasters Co. (KSJO(FM)), Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, 15 FCC Rcd 19091 (Enf. Bur. 2000) (forfeiture paid); Citicasters Co. (WXTB(FM)), Forfeiture Order, 15 FCC Rcd 11906 (2000) (forfeiture paid).  


� See Infinity Broadcasting Operations, Inc.(WKRK-FM), Forfeiture Order, 18 FCC Rcd 6915, 6919, ¶ 13 (2003); see also AMFM Radio Licenses LLC (WWDC-FM), Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, 18 FCC Rcd 19917, ¶16 (2003) (forfeiture paid); Infinity Broadcasting Operations, Inc.(WNEW(FM), Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, 18 FCC Rcd 19954, ¶ 19 (2003) (response pending). 


� 47 C.F.R. § 1.80.


� Station WXTB(FM), Station WRLX(FM) and Station WPLA(FM) shall each be allocated the sum of Two Hundred Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($202,500.00) for six indecency violations and one public inspection file violation   (6 x $27,500 = $192,500 + $10,000 = $202,500).  The sum of One Hundred Forty-Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($147,500.00) is allocated to Station WCKT(FM) for five violations of the Commission’s indecency rules and one violation of the Commission’s public inspection file rule [5 x $27,500 = $137,500 + $10,000 = $147,500).


� See 47 C.F.R. § 1.1914.


� See 18 U.S.C. § 1864 (“Whoever utters any obscene, indecent, or profane language by means of radio communication shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than two years, or both”), 47 C.F.R. § 73.3999 (“No licensee of a radio or television broadcast station shall broadcast on any day between 6 a.m. and 10 p.m. any material which is indecent”).
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